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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of RPSG Sports Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RPSG Sports Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income),
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. '

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
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inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

[\

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for:

i.  not keeping backup on a daily basis of such books of account maintained in electronic
mode in a server physically located in India from 1 April 2023 to 29 November 2023.
The Company has started keeping daily backup for working days from
30 November 2023, however backup for entries posted on non-working days are taken
on next working days; and

ii.  matters stated in the paragraph 2(i}(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the .Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended; )
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, are
as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014,

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B” to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, managerial remuneration paid or
provided by the Company during the year is in accordance with the provision of section 197 of
the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ot
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been receivedby the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under-(a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.
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v.  No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the company.

vi. The Company upgraded to a new accounting software on 18 July 2023. Based on our
examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31 March 2024 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except for the period 1 April 2023 to 17 July 2023
wherein the predecessor accounting software was used and the audit trail feature was not
enabled.

Further, during our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with, in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the
audit trail feature was operating.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is
not applicable for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

7, Waterloo
Street,

Kolkata
al Mehta \ 700069

Partner
Membership Number: 063404
UDIN: 24063404BKCFXX7806

Place: Kolkata
Date: 21 May 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF RPSG SPORTS
PRIVATE LIMITED, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

{(b)  Property, Plant and Equipment have been physical verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties. Therefore, the provision of
clause 3(i)(c) of the said order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores sanctioned by banks
on the basis of security of current assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by
the company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company.

iii. TThe Company has provided loans during the year and the details of such are given below:

Loan (Amt
in Rs. Lakhs)

A. Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Subsidiaries -
- Others 4.760.00

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above
cases

- Subsidiaries z

- Others 2,360.00

During the year the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, guarantee,
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties.
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the loans
made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company,
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us no loans or advances in the nature
of loan granted by the Company which had fallen due during the year has been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the
same parties hence, reporting under clause (3)(e) is not applicable

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year hence, reporting under clause (3)(f) is not applicable.

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of giving the loan. The Company has not granted any loans as prescribed in
Sections 185 Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting is not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has not accepted or is not holding any deposit or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rule, 2014. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable.

Vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Income Tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Income Tax, Cess and other matetial statutory dues in arrears as at
31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) There were no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March, 2024.

Viil. According to the information and explanation given to us there were no transactions relating
to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings to any of its lenders or in the payment
of the interest thereon.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the term
loan taken during the year is applied for the purpose for which it is taken.
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(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e) The company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

X. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting underclause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) There are no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the company.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act,2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period up to 31 March 2024.

XV. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

XVi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) As represented to us by the management of the Company, the Group has 4 (four) Core
Investment Companies as a part of the Group.

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

Xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
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Company. We furtherstate that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

XX. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not fulfill the
criteria as specified under 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

| 7, Waterloo

, Street,
Heém'al Mehta Kolkata
Partner \fie? 700069

Membership Number: 063404
UDIN: 24063404BKCFXX7806

Place: Kolkata
Date: 21 May 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of RPSG Sports
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on “the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedurés to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Batliboi, Purohit & Darbari
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 303086E

7, Waterloo
Street,
Kolkata
700069
Hemal Mehta
Partner

Membership Number: 063404
UDIN: 24063404BKCFXX7806

Place: Kolkata
Date: 21 May 2024



RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office Address: CESC House,

CIN: U92410W82021PTC249453
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Chowringhee Square, Kolkata-700001

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2024
A |ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(a) Property,Plant and Equipment 3 11.66 8.89
(b) Right-of-use assets 3 56.57
(c) Intangible assets 4 5,09,899.52 5,09,899.52
(d) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 9 958.09 650.00
(d) Non current tax asset 5 256.12 361.79
Total non-current assets 5,11,181.96 5,10,920.20
2 |Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 12,841.14 2,479.15
(ii) Loans 7 2,360.00 -
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 32,724.90 16,529.44
(iv) Other financial assets 9 2,031.09 78.44
(b) Other current assets 10 25,502.18 21,423.60
Total current assets 75,459.31 40,510.63
Total assets 5,86,641.27 5,51,430.83
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 +47,038.81 47,038.81
(b) Other equity 12 (26,055.36) (31,962.09)
Total equity 20,983.45 15,076.72
2 |Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 21,841.68 9,700.00
(ii) Lease liability 15 39.13 -
(iii} Other financial liabilities 16 3,15,764.43 3,49,834.02
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 - -
(c) Provisions 18 44.76 13.53
Total non-current liabilities 3,37,690.00 3,59,547.55
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 1,61,063.45 1,01,668.65
(i) Lease liability 15 18.48
(iii) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 14 737.03 223.99
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 59,765.96 68,032.45
(b) Provisions 18 21.00 7.73
(c) Other current liabilities 19 6,361.90 6,873.74
Total current liabilities 2,27,967.82 1,76,806.56
Total equity and liabilities 5,86,641.27 5,51,430.83

See accompanying notes forming an integral part of the financial sta
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RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office Address: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata-700001

CIN: U92410WB2021PTC249453

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs, lakhs

Particulars Notes For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2024 March 31,2023
(I) Revenue from operations 20 69,440.42 28,539.26
(II) Other Income 21 95.67 51.67
(III) Total Income (I + II) 69,536.09 28.590.93
(IV) Expenses
(@) Employee benefits expense 22 1,116.07 419.75
(b) Finance costs 23 41,837.27 39,167.65
(c ) Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 15.26 1.28
(d) Professional & Consultancy expense 25 13,151.75 10,283.45
( e) Other expenses 26 7,491.50 3,208.98
Total Expenses 63,611.85 53,081.11
(V) Profit/(Loss) before tax (III - IV) 5,924.24 (24,490.18)
(VI) Tax expenses
(a) Current tax - -
(b) Deferred tax - (167.03)
Total tax expenses = (167.03)
(VII) Profit/(Loss) after tax (V - VI) 5,924.24 (24,323.15)
(VIII) Other comprehensive income - -
a) Items that will not be reclassified to loss
(i) Gain/(loss) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans (17.51) B
Total other comprehensive income (17.51) -
(IX) Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII) 5,906.73 (24,323.15)
(X) Earnings per equity share 27 1.26 (5.93)
Basic and Diluted earnings per share
(Face value Rs 10 each)

See accompanying notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Batliboi Purohit and Darbari
Chartered Accountants
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RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office Address: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata-700001
CIN: U92410WB2021PTC249453

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2024 March 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/{Loss) before taxes 5,924.24 (24,490.18)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 15.26 1.28

Interest income (95.39) (51.67)

Finance cost 41,837.27 39,167.65
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 47,681.38 14,627.08
Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease In operating assets:

- Trade receivables (10,361.99) 1,128.89

- Other financial assets 25,052.99 (38.41)

- Other assets (4,078.59) (10,321.37)

Adjustments for Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:

- Trade payables 513.05 {505.49)

- Other financial liabilities (4,049.94) 6,888.65

- Other liabilities (484.84) (421.15)
Cash used in operations 54,272.06 11,358.20

Direct taxes refund / (paid) (net) 105.67 (298.68)
Net cash flows used in operating activities 54,377.73 11,059.52

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital Expenditure on property, plant and equipment (7.56) (10.17)

Payment towards franchisee rights {70,900.00) (71,550.00)

Purchase of Term Deposit (27,225.00) -

Loan given (4,760.00) -

Loan refund received 2,400.00 -

Interest received on Term deposit - 13.80

Interest received on Loan given 6.66 -

Net cash flows generated from investing activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(1,00,485.90)

(71,546.37)

Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Capital - 6,122.45
Proceeds from Secured Loan from Bank 1,22,300.00 38,000.00
Repayment of Secured Loan from Bank (38,300.00) -
Proceeds from Secured Loan from Non Banking Finance Company 10,000.00 -
Proceeds from Unsecured Loan from Other Body Corporates 27,268.00 18,145.55
Repayment of Unsecured Loan to Other Body Corporate {19,268.00) (8,268.00)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (9.43) -
Payment of interest on Lease Liabilities (2.47) -
Finance cost paid {9,295.82) (3,091.44)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 92,692.28 50,908.56
Net Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 46,584.11 (9,578.29)
Cash And Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year (20,693.66) (11,115.37)
Cash And Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year (Note 8) 25,890.45 (20,693.66)
Note: Figures in brackets represent outflows.
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars 01-Apr-23 Cash Flows Others 31-Mar-24
Current borrowings 64,145.55 89,800.00 - 1,53,945.55
Non-Current borrowings (including current maturities) 10,000.00 12,200.00 (74.87) 22,125.13
Lease Liabilities - (11.90) 69.51 57.61
Particulars 01-Apr-22 Cash Flows Others 31-Mar-23
Current borrowings 16,268.00 47,877.55 - 64,145.55
Non-Current borrowings (including current maturities) 10,000.00 - - 10,000.00
Lease Liabilities - - -

See accompanying notes forming an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Batliboi Purohit and Darbari
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:303086E

He Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 063404

Place: Kolkata

Date: 21st May,2024
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Managing Dire

Sunanda Bhattacharya

Company Secretary

Vinay Chopra

Whole Time Director &
CFO
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RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Registared Dffice Address: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata-700001
CIN: US2410WB2021PTC249453

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

A Equity S |

bl 024
Amount in Rs. lakhs

Balance as at Aprll 01,2023 |Changes In Equity Share|Restated balance atthe  |Changes in equity share Balzance as at March 31,
Capital due to prior beginting of the current capital during the current 2024
period errors reporting period ear
I 47,038.81 - 47,038.81 4 47,03881
{2) As at 315t Mareh 2023
Amount in Rs. lakhs
as at Aprll 01,2022 |Changes in Equity Share Restated balance at the  |Changesin equity share Balance as at March 31,
Capital due to prior |beglnning of the current capital during the current 2023
eriod errors _vgguning period year
40,916.37 - 40,916.37 £,122.45 47,038 81
B. Other Equity

(1] As at 31t March 2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs
Total

Instruments Through
Partlculars Retalned Earning Other comprehensive
Income

Balance as at April 01,2023 (31,952 -
Changes in accounting . .
olicy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the
beglnning of the current -
reparting period
Profit/(Loss) for the year 5,924.24 5,924.24
Other Comprehensive (1751} . (17.51)
Income for the year
Cividends - -
‘Transfer to retained
earnings

Balance as at 31st March
iy {26,055.36) E |26,055.36]|

(31,962.09)

(2} As at 315t March 2023

Amount in Rs. lakhs
Total

Instruments Through
Particulars Retained Earning Other comprehensive
Income

Balance as at Aprll 01,2022 (7.638.84) - (7.638.94)
Changes In accounting
rior period errors
Restated balance at the
beginning of the current - - ]
reporting period
profit/(Loss) for the year (24.323.15) - (24,323.15)
Other Comprehensive
Income for the year
Dividends - - -
Transfer to retalned
earnings

Any other change (to be
specified
Balance as at 31st March
2023

(31,962.09) - {31.962.09)

See accompanylng notes forming an Integral part of the flnancial statements

1In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A

Vinay Chopra
irector Whole Time Director &
CFO
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Chartered Accountants
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RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
REGISTERED OFFICE: CESC HOUSE, CHOWRINGHEE SQUARE, KOLKATA-700001
CIN:U92410WB2021PTC249453

Notes to financial statement

1. General information

RPSG Sports Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated in India on 10th November 2021
under the Companies Act 2013.The Company has entered into franchisee agreement with Board of Control
for Cricket in India (BCCI), by virtue of that it operates the Lucknow franchise known as “Lucknow Super
Giants” of the Indian Premier League T-20 cricket competition.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Director on 21st May 2024.
2. Material accounting policies
2.1. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act”) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2. Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

The balance sheet presents current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as
separate classifications. For this purpose, an asset is classified as current if:

It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

. It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

« Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

« The company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The normal operating cycle of the company varies between businesses. But for these financial statements,
it has been assumed to be of 12 months.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

2.3. Revenue recoghnition
Revenue from contract with customers for sale of goods and services

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation
by transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a
point of time or over a period of time. Performance obligations satisfied over a period of time are recognised
as per the terms of relevant contractual agreements/ arrangements. Performance obligations are said to
be satisfied at a point of time when the customer obtains controls of the asset.



RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
REGISTERED OFFICE: CESC HOUSE, CHOWRINGHEE SQUARE, KOLKATA-700001
CIN:U92410WB2021PTC249453

Notes to financial statement

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and goods and service tax. Transaction price is recognised based
on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the expected value
method.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

2.3.1. Share of Central Rights Revenue

Revenue from franchisee share of central rights is recognised when the right to receive the payment
is established as per the terms of the agreement. Revenue is recognised as per the information
provided by BCCI or as per management’s estimate in case the information is not received. The
revenue is allocated on a pro-rata basis to number of matches played during the year as against the
total number of matches payable for the season.

2.3.2. Income from Sponsorship Fees and Advertisement/Brand Promotion/Partnership Fees

Revenue from sponsorships/advertisements/brand promotions/partnerships is recognized on accrual
basis as per the terms of the contracts/ agreements with the sponsors and there exists no uncertainty
as to its realisation or collection. The revenue is allocated on a pro-rata basis to number of matches
played during the year as against the total number of matches payable for the season.

2.3.3. Income from Sale of Tickets

Revenue from sale of tickets is recognised when the tickets have been sold and no material uncertainty
exists as to its realisation or collection. Revenue includes consideration received or receivable, but net

of discounts and other sales related taxes.

2.3.4. Income from Prize Money

Revenue is recognised when the franchise has a right to receive the prize money and no material
uncertainty exists as to its realisation or collection.

2.3.5. Income from Player Trading

Revenue is recognized as per the terms of the contracts/ agreements with the franchisee to whom
players have been leased out for a period and there exists no doubt as to the collection of such income.

2.3.6. Revenue from Others

Revenue is recognised when it is earned and no material uncertainty exists as to its realisation or
collection.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contra
Where the Company has an obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer,
Company has received the consideration in advance, a contract liability is recognised

2.4. Foreign currencies
The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee.

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functionakestrency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
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Notes to financial statement

2.5.

2.6.

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

2.6.1. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost
is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined
benefit costs are categorised as follows:

» service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

¢ net interest expense or income; and

e remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line
item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service
costs.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. For other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when
there is a deep market for such bonds.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation
is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when- the entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related
restructuring costs.
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Notes to financial statement

2.7.

2.8.

2.6.2. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

All property, plant and equipment are valued at cost less depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The
cost of an asset includes the purchase cost of materials, including import duties and non-refundable taxes,
and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intended use.
Interest on borrowings used to finance the construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the
cost of the asset until such time that the asset is ready for its intended use.

Category of assets Useful Life
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Plant and Equipments * 5 Years

* Based on internal assessment, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent
the period over which the Company expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are
different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the

Intangible assets

2.8.1. Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets include Franchisee rights which are perpetual in nat
measured at cost less accumulated impairment.
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Notes to financial statement

2.9.

Subsequently, intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually.

2.8.2. De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.8.3. Useful lives of intangible assets

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation.

Franchisee Rights Infinite

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Y

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

2.10. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating

2.11,

unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Lease

Company as a lessee- Right of use assets and lease liabilities =
A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use a
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases:

The Company enters into leasing arfangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based
on several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term,
lessee’s option to extend/purchase etc

Recognition and initial measurement of right of use assets:

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of
the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the
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lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).
Subsequent measurement of right of use assets:

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Lease liabilities:

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable
payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for
payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification,
or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these short-term leases are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.12. Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
2.12.1. Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

2.12.2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reparting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered. :
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2.13.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow

from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

2.12.3. Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Segment reporting

The Company’s Board of Directors has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as
defined under Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’. The CODM reviews the financial performance and allocates
resources for the Company as a whole and thus the management consider the Company to be a single
reportable segment.

2.14. Accounting of provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

2.15

2.16.

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
where it is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Where the effect is material, the provision is discounted to net present value using an appropriate current
market-based pre-tax discount rate and the unwinding of the discount is included in finance costs.

Contingent liabilities are recognised only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, due
to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the
Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources, or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis
and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amartised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets
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2.16.1. (Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost
(except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition):

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

2.16.2. Amortised cost and Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs -and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“Other income” line item.

2.16.3. Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

» it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not design effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.




RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
REGISTERED OFFICE: CESC HOUSE, CHOWRINGHEE SQUARE, KOLKATA-700001
CIN:U92410WB2021PTC249453

Notes to financial statement

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes
in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends
recognised in profit or loss are included in the *Other income’ line item.

2.16.4. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects
on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
materially reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The company has
not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any

gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

2.16.5. Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased materially
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased materially since
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the company measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

In case of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the loss allowance measured in accordance with the above
requirements is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the profit
or loss but is not reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet; so
the financial asset continues to be presented in the balance sheet at its fair value.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a material increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To
OROH'T&O ake that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
( 1’% strument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
Zgh at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
42Mailable without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of material increases in credit risk since
wifitial recognition.

o
~
A AN

2.16.6. De recognition of financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
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recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal
of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

2.17. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2.17.1. C(lassification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

2.17.2. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

2.17.3. Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

2.17.3.1. FEinancial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not desighated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or materially reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

« the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the companying is provided internally on that basis; or

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always
recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

2.17.3.2. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised
as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

.The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.17.3.3. Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For
financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms
part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.17.3.4. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.18. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Ordinary equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary
shares.

2.19. Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could
differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised
in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgements, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most material effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability that
future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards can be utilized. In addition, material judgment is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a material risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Impairment of non- financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating
units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty
relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on

43 value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
o, \36\ nsaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
- Ered Actd e presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

g

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available) and non- financial assets. This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
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assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management
uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash

equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.20. Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31,2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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Note 3 Property, plant & equipment and Right of use assets

Carrying amounts of:

Computers
ROU Asset
Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at April 01, 2023

Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions
Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2023
Depreciation expense
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Carrying amount

Balance as at April 01, 2023
Addition

Disposals

Depreciation expense
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Addition

Disposals

Depreciation expense
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Note:

All the above assets are owned by the Company.

Amount in Rs, lakhs

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11.66 8.89
56.57 2
68.23 8.89
Total
Computers ROU Asset tangible assets
10.17 - 10.17
10.17 = 10.17
7.56 67.04 74.60
17.73 67.04 84.77
1.28 - 1.28
1.28 - 1.28
4.79 10.47 15.26
6.07 10.47 16.54
10.17 - 10.17
1.28 - 1.28
8.89 - 8.89
7.56 67.04 74.60
4.79 10.47 15.26
11.66 56.57 68.23
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5 Moncurront tax asset

TDS Receivable

Total Non Current Tax Asset

6 Trade receivables
(Unsecured,considered good)

Consldered good

Related party

Others
Unhllled Revenue

Total Trade Recelvables

Amount in As, lakhs

As at| As al,
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
255.12 361.79

256,12 .79

Amount In Re. lakhs

As st As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
urrant urrent
0.11 0.05
912.74 169.10
11,928.29 2,310.00
II.“S&: 2,479.15

i) No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company elther severally or jointly with any other person. While the trade recelvable due from firms or private companles respectively In which any director is a partner, a director or a member is Rs, NI,

(i) Trade receivables are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days based upon the credit worthiness of the customers,

fin} Trade receivables are further analysod au follgws:

Trade receivable as at March 31,2024

Amount in . lakhs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Unbfited Less than 6 manths| 6 months -1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years| Total|

o — N 11,928.29 49580 243.95 169.10 - . 12,841.14
(i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables — which have . . B - - -

sigrificant increase In credit risk -
(ill) UndIsputed Trade Receivables - credit _ . _ N . : s
vy Trade good E: 2 . s . . .
{v) Disputed Trade Recelvables - which have = = 5 = = 2 _
nignificant incresse in credit risk
](vl) Trade - credit a - Z - . . .

Trade receivable as at March 31.2023
Amount in Rs. lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Unbilled Revenue|  Less than 6 months| 6 months -1 year| 1-2 years| 2-3 years More than 3 yoars Total|

;':od R N 2,310.00 0.05 169.10 - . . 2,479.15
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have B - B - . -

significant increase in eredit risk B
(1i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables - credit . - N = S E .
() Trade i good - . - . - . -
(v} Dizputod Trade Recelvables - which have - =

alanificant increans in crodit sisk . = . = .
i Trade - credlt i - : . - - . A

{iv) Refer Note 32 for information about credit risk and market risk of trade receivables.

7 Lloans
{unsecured, considered goad)

{a) Loans to related partles

(b} Others
Total Loans

b. Loans granted to Promoters,Directors,KMPs and Related Partles

Amount In s, lakhs

As alf
March 31, 2024

As at]
March 31, 2023,

2,360.00

2360.00

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or advance In the nature of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and Advances In the nature of loans

As ot 31 March 2024
Framaters =
Directors 5
KMPs -
Related Parties
(1) Loan to Related Party (Entity under common contral}-repayable on demand 2,360,00

As at 31 March 2023

A3 at 31 March 2024

100°%%]

t 31 Mareh 2023

Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash on hand
{b) Balances with banks

In Current Accounts

In deposit account (having ariginal maturity of 3 months or less)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

BA  For Statement of Cash flow, cash and cash

Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
In current accounts

of the

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Less: Bank Overdraft and cash credit facilltles (Refer Note 13)

Total Balance for Cash Flow Statement

9 Other Financlal Asset
(Unsecured,considered good)

(a) Bank deposits

(b) Interest Receivable

(c) Other advances
Total Other Financlal Asset

The above Non current Bank deposits are linked to borrowings from Banks

10 Other Current Asset

(a) Balance with government authoritles

(b) Advances given to suppllers

{c) Prepaid expense
Total Other Current Asset

Amount In Ra. lakhs

As st/
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

7.724.90 16,529.44
25,000.00 -
32,734.90 16,579.44 |
Ambunt In Rs. lakhs
As at As at]

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

7.724.90
25,000.00

(6,834.45)

16,529.44

(37,223.10)

210.693.60

Amaount in R, lnkhs

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
Non—current Current Noen-current Current
958.09 2,000,00 650,00 -
. 20.20 - 33.60
. 10.69 - 44,84
958.09 2,011.00 650,00 7844

Amount in Ra. lakhs

#= at March 31, 2024

Az at March 31, 2023/

25,094.53 20,570.18
112.27 477.94
295.38 37548

423 60

23,502.18
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Note - 11 Equity share capital

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

No. of shares Amount in /5. lakhs No. of shares Amount in Rs. lakhs
Authorised:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 50,00,00,000 50,000.00 50,00,00,000 50,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equlty shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 47,03,88,147 47,038.81 47,03,88,147 47,038.81
Total 47,03,88,147 47,038.81 47,03,88,147 47,038.81
=== te e
(i) Reconciliation of the ber of shares ding at the b and at the end of the period.
Particulars Op g Closing Balance
/{Deletions)
Fully Paid Equity Shares with Voting rights
Perlod ended March 31, 2024
No. of Shares 47,03,88,147 47,03,88,147
Amount In Rs. lakhs 47,038.81 47,038.81
Perlod ended March 31, 2023
No. of Shares 40,91,63,657 6,12,24,490 47,03,88,147
Amount In Rs, lakhs 40,916,37 6,122,45 47,038.81
(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Class of shares / Name of shareholder
/ Number of shares % holding in that Number of shares | % holding in that class
held class of shares held of shares
Equity shares with voting rights
Ralnbow Investment Limited 23,04,90,192 49.00% 23,04,90,192 49.00%
RPSG Ventures Limited 23,98,97,955 51.00% 23,98,97,955 51.00%

tiiiy of

Shares held by promoters

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

% Change during the
year

Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares No. of Shares %of total shares
|Rainbow Investment Limited 23.04,90.192 49.00% 23,04,90,192 49.00% -
P! res Limi 23,98,97.955 51.00% 23.98,97,955 51.00% =
47.03,88,147 100.00% 47,03,88.147 100.00% =

(iv) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of equity
shares wlll be entited to receive remalning assets of the Company after distribution of all preferentlal amounts, If any.The distribution wlll be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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12 Other Equity

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Retained earnings (26,055.36) (31,962.09)
Total (26,055.36) (31,962.09)
Retained earnings

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Pl < As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance (31,962.09) (7,638.94)
Profit/(Loss) for the period 5,924.24 (24,323.15)
Other comprehensive income for the period (17.51) -
Closing Balance (26,055.36) (31,962.09)

Notes:
(i) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents profit/(loss) earned by the Company, net of appropriation, if any.




RPSG SPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Reglstered Office Address: CESC House, Chowringhee Square, Kolkata-700001
CIN: U92410W82021PTC249453

Notes to Pinsnclal Statement

13 Borrowi
= Ameount In Rs. Inkhs
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As al March 31, 2023
Particulars
Non-carrent Current HNean-current GCurrent
Unsecured Loany
From Body Corporates-Related Partles- Shart Term Borrowings (Current) = 34,145.55 F 26,145.55
Secured Loans
From Banks - Long Term Berrowings (Non Current) 12,200.00 - 10,000.00
Current maturitles out of Long term Borrowings from Banks (300.00) 300.00 (300.00) 300.00
From Non Banking Financial Instituition - Long Term Borrowings (Non Current } 9,92513 - = .
Current maturities out of Long term borrowlings from Non Banking Financlal Instituition (Amoritlsation of upfrant fees) 16.55 (16.55) . -
From Banks - Short Term Working Capital Loan(Current} - 1,15,800.00 - 38,000.00
Bank Qverdraft and Cash Credlt Facilities (Current) - 6,834,45 - 37,223.10
Total FTNETNT) 1,61.063.45 9.700,00 10166855 )

1)Nature of security: The above secured loans (other than Shart Term Working Capltal Loan for Rs 23700 Lakhs) are secured by way of first parl-passu charge over all Immovable and movable fixed assets and entire current assets, both present and future together
with pari passu charge by way of hypothecation, on the entire recelvables af the Company. The above loans are also secured by way of letter of comfort issued by the Parent Company.The Short Term Working Capital Loan of Rs 23700 Lakhs Is secured with
subservient charge over all current assets and movable fixed assets of the Borrower and necessary cash margin. The above securlty does not Include any charge or encumbrance over the franchise rights agreement with BCCI.

li)MaJor tarms of repayment of Rupee Term Loans

[Rupee Term Loan from Bank & Non Benking | Amount In Ra. lakhs | Tarms of repayment
Financlal Institaltion as at 33st March 2024
Ruges torm loan from Banks 9,700.00 (Repayabie in 40step up

quarterly Instalments as Y1-
Nil, Y2-3%, ¥3-3%,Y4-5%,Y5-
5%,Y6-5%, Y7-5%, YB-8%, Y9-
B%,Y10-8%,Y11-50%
‘Repayable in 40step up
quarterly Instalments as Y1-
NIL, Y2-5%, Y3-5%,Y4-5%, Y5
5%Y6-5%,Y7-5%,YB-5%,Y9-
5%,Y10-30%, Y11-30%
Repayable as follows-Y1-NIL,
¥2 BY3-10% each(End of
Year),Y4-30% & Y5-
50%(quarterly instalments)

Rupee term loan fram Banks 2,500.00

Rupee term loan from Non Banking Flnanciall
Instituiton{discounted amaunt)

5,52513

Interest rates on Rupee Term Laan are basad on spread over respective landar's bunchmark rete or other
market benchmark rate

rl!um Tetm Loan from Bank as at 31st March | Amount in A, lakhs |[Terma of rapaymant
2023

Rupee torm loan from Banks 9,700.00 |Repaysble in 405tep up
quarterly instalments as Y1-
Nil, Y2-3%, Y3-3%,Y4-5%,Y5-
5%,Y6-5%,Y7-5%,Y8-8%,Y9-
B%,Y10-8%,Y11-50%
Interest rates on Rupoe Term Loan are based on spread over respective lender's benchmark rate or ather
market benchmark rate.

ll)Maturity profile of Rupee Term Loans

Maturity Profile of Non Current Borrowings
outstanding as at 31st March 2024

Rupee Term Loan
from Bank & Non
Bonking Financlal

Institultion
Borrowing with maturity upto 1 yesr 283.45
{Borrowing with maturity between 1 and 3 years 3,213.59
Barreweng with matunty botween 3 snd Syears 9,228.09
[Borrowing with maturity between 5 and 10 years 8,650.00
|Barrewing with maturity beyond 10vesrs 750.00
22,125.13

Maturity Profile of Non Current Barrowings [Rupee Term Loan

'outstanding as at 31st March 2023 from Bank

Barrowing with maturity upto 1 year 300,00

Borrowing with maturity between 1 and 3years 800.00

— |

[Borrowing with matunty between 3 and Syears 1,000.00

Borrowing with matunty between 5 and 10 years 7,500.00

Bosrawing with maturty beyand 10vears 2]
10,000.00

ill) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan during the financlal year and further there is no default in loan covenants

14 Trade Pavable

Ampunt in
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
- Current Curront
Total g duves of micro and
small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micra
enterprises and small enterprises
Related partv 4.03 1187
Others g 21242
Total 737.03 221,99 ]
i1Trade Pavables as at March 31,2024 are further analysed as follows-
(Amount in Rs lakhs.)
Outstanding for tollowing periods from due date of payment As at March 31, 2029
Less than 1 vear 12 venrs 3 vears [#orn than 3 veary Total
¥33.01 400 - = 737.03 |
i}Trade Payables as at March 31,2023 are further analysed as follows-
Amoun Rs lakhs,
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Az at March 31, 2023
[Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
22159 = = . 213,39 |
Note : The Company does not have dues to suppliers reglstered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
("MSMED Act"). The disclosures pursuant to the sald MSMED Act are as follows:
Particulars 31-Mar-24

Principal amount due to suppliers realstered under the MSMED Act and
|remaining unpaid as at vear end

Interest due to suppllers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining
unpaid as ot vear end

Principal amounts paid te suppliers reaistered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the vear

Interest paid, other than under Sectlen 16 of MSMED Act, to suppllers
realstered under the MSMED Act, bevond the aopolnted dav during the
vear

Interest pald, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suopliers reaistered
under the MSMED Act, bevond the appointed dav during the year

Interest due and pavable towards suppliers realstered under MSMED
Act, for pawments already made

Further interest iwmaining dus and savable far sarfier vears

The above information regarding Micro and Small enterprises is on the basls of Information available with the Company



1S Lease [Iabllity

[Amotnt in As lakhs.}
As b March 31, 2023 As st March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2024 Az al March 31, 2024]
Partlculars
Hon-current Current Hon-current Current
Lease Uabllity 39.13 18 48 - -
Total 39.13 1848 - H

The followina Is the movernent In lease liabilltles durina the vear ended March 31, 2024:

{Amaunt in Rs lakhs.)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended J1st March 2023
|Particulars March 2024
Ooening Balance - .
|Addaions durning thit vear 67.04 x
Finance cost acorued during the period 247 -
Deletions/ Reversal - -
|Pavmentiddiustment of ease labifties 11.90 -
[Closing Balance 57.61 ]

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of Jease |

iabilitles as at March 31, 2024 on an undlscounted basls:

{Amnant in Ratibha.)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st March 2023
Particulars March 2024
Less than ane vear 22.42 -
One to five vears 42.77 -
Mare than flee vears = :
18 Other financial Habilities
Amount in Rs. lnkhs
As at March 31, 2024 A3 st March 31, 2024]  Asat March 31,2023]  As at March 31, 2023]
Particulars
Mon-curtant Currant Nan t Current
(8] Interest payable on borrawings - 1,019.61 - 1,201.39
(b) Security Deposit 8 1,500.00 = 6,500.00
(c) Provision for amount payable towards franchisee rights 3,15,764.43 55,730.48 3,49,834,02 60,161.92
{d) Pravizion fof mxpense - _ 151887 = 169,14
Total 3.15,764,33 59,265.96 2,49.824.02
Amount in fte. Iakhs
17 Deferred tax {net) As at

Delerred tax llabllitles
Ddtargnce Setween tax base and book base
Delorred tax axscts
Business loss

Other timing dlifferences

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabllity)

Note:As a matter of prudence, deferred tax assets have been recognised only to the extent of deferred tax llabllity.

18 Provisions

March 31, 2024

As af|
March 31, 2023

Non Current

Non Current|

144,
34,555,10 25,112.19
278.90 31.81
J‘Im 253“.00

Amount In Ra. lakhs

As at March 31, 2024 Az at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
Particulors
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Provision for employee benefits:
(1) Gratulty 25.17 773 2.66 254
(I1) Compensated absences 19.59 13.27 10.87 5.19
Total 44.76 21.00 13.53 73

19 Othor Liabilities

Amount in B, lakhs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars
Current Current
(a) Dues payable to government autharlties 5,143.33 5,156.24
(b} Unearned Revenue 1,218 57 1,717.50
Total 6,61.90 U‘U?JJ"
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20

21

22

23

25

24

26

Revenue from operations

(a) Sale of Tickets

Income from sale of tickets

(b) Rendering of Services

Revenue from sponsorship fees

Revenue from advertisements and brand promotions etc

Others

{c) Other operating revenue

Income from prize money
Share of central revenue

Total

Other income

Interest Income from

(1) From term deposits

(I} From Inter-corporate deposits

(lii) Income tax refund
Other Income

Total

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and allowances

Contributlon to provident and other funds

Total

Finance costs

Interest expense

Bank and Non Banking Financial Institultion

Loan from related partles

Other borrowing costs
Total

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year ended March

For the year ended March|

31,2024 31,2023
2,191.01 -
858.71 803.57
7,691.70 5,626.62
0.62 165.67
1,362.50 1,381.50
57,335.88 20,561.90
69,440,942 28,539.26

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
74.69 50.93
7.40 -
13.30 0.74
0.28 -
95.67 51.67
5.0

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
1,056.58 396.32
57.49 23.43
1,116.07 419.75
R

Amount in Rs. lakha

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
6,071.78 1,813.21
1,809.82 1,306.94
33,955.67 36,047.50
41,837.27 39,167.65

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Depreciation and amorti

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)
(b) Depreciation on ROU Asset (Refer note 3)

Total

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
4.79 1.28
1047
15.26 1.28
===

Amount in Rs. lal

Professlonal & consultancy expense (includes Player & Support staff cost)

Total

Other expenses

(a) Match conducting and training expenses

(b) Marketing expense

(c) Travel, boarding and lodging expense
(d) Auditor's remuneration [Excluding Goods and Service Tax]

- Statutory audit
- Limited review
- Tax Audit

- Others

(e) Brokerage and commission

(f) Rates and taxes

(9) Insurance

(h) Net loss on foreign currency transactions

(1) Bank charges
(i) Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
13,151.75 10,283.45
13,151.75 10,283.45

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year ended March

For the year ended March|

31,2024 31,2023
2,656.10 426.28
1,724.72 702.63
1,379.66 1,245.43
6.00 5.00
1.50 1.50
2.00 2.00
0.11
525.52 245.95
1,034.95 459,80
118.47 86.02
13.31 13.39
4.33 8.02
24.83 12.96
7,491.50 3,208.98
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31 Employee Beneflt Plans

Ralined contribution alany

The Company participates In defined contribution plan on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in relation to the scheme represents the valua of contributions

payable during the year by them at rates specified by the rules of the plan. The only amounts included In the balance sheet are those relating to the prior month's contributions
that were not due to be pald until after the end of the reporting period.

Provident Fund

In accordance with Indian law, ellgible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a definad contribution plan, in which both
employees and the Company make monthly contributions et a specified parcentage of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary)

Both the employer and employea contributa to this Fund and such contributions togathar with interest accumulated thereon are payable to employees at the time of their
saparation from the Company or retirament, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests immediately an rendering of services by the employse. During the year, the company has
recognised Rs 44,48 lakhs {for the year ended March 31, 2023 - Rs 18,23 lakhs) as contribution In the Statamant of Profit and Loss.

The Company offers the following employee benefit schames to its employees:

Rafined BoaeliLalany

i, Gratulty

fthar long yyin emolnyes bynailly

1, Compensated absences

The following tabla sets out the unfunded status of the defined benefit plans and other long term benefits and the amount recognised in the financial statements:

Amount in B, inkhs
Far tha Year endad Fot the Year andad
Merch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particoinrs Gratuity Compensated absences Gratulty Compensated absences
Components of employer expense
Current service cost 12,74 17.86 520 16.07
Past service cost - . . .
Intarast Cost on Nat D30 0.27 0.97 . -
Actuarial (gains) / losses from financial assumptions. 0,81 0.61 . -
Actuarial (gains) / losses from demographic assumptlons 16,70 228 . -
Actuarial fasins / lagses from evnerience adivaimants o . . .
Total expense n Tolal C Income 3o0.52 2172 5.20 16,07
Linbility recognised In the Balance Sheat
Current lability 7.73 13.27 254 519
Non-current liability 25.17 19.59 2.66 10.88
Total liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 32,90 32,86 5.20 16.07

Amount in Be, lakhs

Far the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulnrs Gratuity Compensaled absences Gratuity Compersated absences

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the
year
Present value of DBO at baghning of the year 520 16,07 - .

P (Income) in income 30.52 2172 5.20 16.07
Benefits paid during the year (2.82) (4.93)
Past service cost . . " -
Present value of DBO st the end of the year 32.90 32.86 5.20 16.07
Actuariat asaumptions
Discount rate 6.95% 6.95% 7.15% 7.15%
Salarv escalation 5.00% 5.00%, 5.00% 5.00%

The discount rate s based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, Increments and other relevant factors.

Thete plans typially enpose the Company to aftuarial riks are a3 folows:
Credit rigc TF the scheme Is insured and fully funded on projected LRIt creit baws there 1 o credit rivk ta Uhe extans cha)
Insurer(s) is/ ara unable to discharge thelr obligations Including fallure to discharge in timely mannar.

Pay-as-your-go risk For unfunded schemes financial planning could be difficult as the benefits payable will directly affect the
revenue and this could be widely fluctuating from year to year, Maraover there may be an opportunity cost of|
better investment returns affecting adversely the cost of the scheme.

[Discount rate risk The Company Is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall In discount rate will evantually incraase In
the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby [ncreasing the value of the lability.

Liquidity risk This risk arises from the short term assat and liability cash-flow mismatch thereby causing the Company|
being unable to pay the benefits as thay fall due In the short term, Such a situation could be the result of
holding large llllquid assets disregarding the results of cash-Mlow projections and cash outflow Inflow
mismatch. (or It could be due ta insufficlent assetsfcash.)

Demographic risk In the valuation of tha Nability certain demagraphic (mortaiity and attrition rates) assumptions are Inherent
Tha Company is exposed to this risk to the extent of actual experience eventually belng worse compared tq|
that assumed thereby causing an Increase In the schame cost.

Regulatory k. Hew ActfRegulations may come up in fulure which could [ncrease the Hiabisity significantly,

Future salary increase risk® The scheme cost I3 very sensilive 1o Ihe assumad fulure salary escalation rates Tor 8l final salary aafined|
vanafit schomsas. If actusl future salary escalations are higher thap that assimed (s the vahustion setul
scheme cost and hence tha value of tha lishdlity will ba higher than that estimated,

Sensltlvity analysis

The increase / {decrease) of the defined benefit abligation to changes In the welghted princlpal assumptions are:
Amaunt in Bs, lpkhs

Gratuity Gratulty I Compeniated Absenses

Sensitivity 2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23

DBO at 31.3 with discount rate +1% 2912 3004 a95 14 88
Corresponding service cost 1164 1654 495 1468
DBO at 31.3 with discount rate -1% 37 44, 3528 551 17.75)
Corresponding service cost 1407, 1946 551 17.79
DBO at 31.3 with +1% salary escalation 3748 3830 5852 1777
Corresponding service cost 1408 1947 552 7
DBO at 31.3 with -1% salary escalation 2903 2997 494 1464
Corresponding service cost 11861 16 50 494 1464
DBO at 31.3 with +50% withdrawal rate 3204 2298 520 1612
Corresponding service cost 12 72| 1790 520 1612
DBO at 31.3 with -50% withdrawal rate 288 278 521 1602
(Corresponding service cost 1276 1782 521 1602
DBO at 31.3 with +10% mortality rate 2292 3288 s20 1608
(Corresponding service cost 12 75 17 87 520 1608
DBO at 31.3 with -10% mortality rate 3287 2488 520 1606
(Corresponding service cost 12 73| 17 85 520 16 06
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32 Financial Instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on Balance Sheet items that contain financial instruments.The details of material accounting
policies , including the criteria for recognition , the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset , financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in Note no.1 to the financial statements.

32.1 Categories of financial instruments

The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at March 31, 2024

Amortised cost

Fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss

Total Carrying Value

Total Fair Value

Financial assets

Trade receivables 12,841.14 - 12,841.14 12,841.14
Loans 2,360.00 = 2,360.00 2,360.00
Other financial assets 2,989.18 - 2,989.18 2,989.18
Cash and bank balances 32,724.90 - 32,724.90 32,724.90
Total financial assets 50,915.22 - 50,915.22 50,915.22
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 1,82,905.13 - 1,82,905.13 1,82,905.13
Lease liabilities 57.61 - 57.61 57.61
Trade payables 737.03 - 737.03 737.03
Other financial liabilities 3,75,530.39 - 3,75,530.39 3,75,530.39
Total financial liabilities 5,59,230.16 - 5,59,230.16 5,59,230.16

The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs, lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

Amortised cost

Fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss

Total Carrying Value

Total Fair Value

Financial assets

Trade receivables 2,479.15 - 2,479.15 2,479.15
Other financial assets 728.44 = 728.44 728.44
Cash and bank balances 16,529.44 - 16,529.44 16,529.44
Total financial assets 19,737.03 - 19,737.03 19,737.03
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 1,11,368.65 - 1,11,368.65 1,11,368.65
Trade payables 223.99 - 223.99 223.99
Qther financial liabilities 4,17,866.47 = 4,17,866.47 4,17,866.47
Total financlal liabilities 5,29,459.11 N 5,29,459.11 5,29,459.11

Note :

i. The short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortized cost which is approximately equal to their fair value.

32,2 Capital Management
The company’s capital management objective is to maintain an optimal debt-equity structure so as to reduce the cost of capital, thereby enhancing returns to shareholders. The Company also has a policy of making
judicious use of various available debt instruments within its overall working capital drawing limit,

32,2.1 Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Debt (A) 1,82,905.13 1,11,368.65
Cash and Cash Equivalents (B) 32,724.90 16,529.44
Net debt (A-B) 1,50,180.23 94,839.21
Total Equity 20,983.45 15,076.72
Net debt to equity ratio {(A/B) 7.16 6.29

32.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of Borrowings, Lease liabilities, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company's operations. The Company
has trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that arise directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

32.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three

price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits.

32.5 Foreign currency risk management

The company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise,

32.5.1 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The carrying amounts of the company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of reporting period are as follows:

rrency risk and other

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars

Liabilities

Assets

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

As at March 31,2024

- As at March 31,2023

usp

INR
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32 Financial Instruments
32.5.2 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The company is mainly exposed to the currencY USD. This sensitivity analysis mentioned in the below table has been based on the composition of the Company's financial assets and liabilities expased to foreign currency as
at year end. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable
impact on the profit and the balances below would be negative.

Amount in Rs, lakhs

Particulars

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

Impact on profit or loss for the year-USD
Impact on profit or loss for the year-INR

32.6 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The Company is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example trade receivables, placing deposits, cash and cash

equivalents,

In respect of trade receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers in various geagraphical areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates management consider the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents andfixed deposits are considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Maximum exposure-to credit risk of the Company has been listed below-

Amount in Rs, lakhs

Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Trade receivables 12,841.14 2,479.15
Loans 2,360.00 -
Other financial assets 2,989.18 728.44
Cash and bank balances 32,724.90 16,529.44
Total financial assets 50,915.22 19,737.03

32.7 Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking Facilities and reserve borrawing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of

financial assets and liabilities.

The following Is an analysls of the Company's contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at March 31, 2024 Current Non-Current Total

Within 12 Months 1-5 Years Later than 5 years
Borrowings 1,61,063.45 12,441.68 8,650.00 1,82,155.13
Lease liabilities (undiscounted) 22.42 42.77 - 65.19
Trade and other payables 737.03 - = 737.03
Other financial liabilities (undiscounted) 74,935.48 3,54,500.00 70,900.00 5,00,335.48
Total 2,36,758.39 3,66,984.45 79,550.00 ©,83,292.84 |
As at March 31, 2023 Current Non-Current Total

Within 12 Months 1-5 Years Later than 5 years
Borrowings 1,01,668,65 1,800.00 7,900.00 1,11,368.65
Trade and other payables 223.99 - - 223.99
Other financial liabilities (undiscounted) 78,770.54 3,54,500.00 1,41,800.00 5,75,070.54
Total 1,80,663.18 3,56,300.00 1,49,700.00 6.86,663.18
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34 The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, managing, operating, administering and dealing in sports teams and of offering services in the field of sports and
related activities. The Company operates the Lucknow franchise "Lucknow Super Giants " of the Indian Premier Leaue (IPL).

35 Segment Reporting

The Company s principally engaged in a single business segment viz,. cricket development and other allied services. The financial performance relating to this single business

segment is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (being the Board and Executive Officers of the Company) and hence it is the only reportable segment in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segments.

36 Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 21st May, 2024.
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